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October 8, 2009

Karen V. Gregory

Secretary

Federal Maritime Commission
800 N. Capitol Street, N. W,
Washington, D. C. 20573

Re: Docket No. 07-02
Anderson International Transport and Owen Anderson-Possible Violations
of Section 8(a) and 19 of the Shipping Act

Dear Ms. Gregory:

Enclosed for filing are the original and fifteen copies of the Bureau of Enforcement’s
PETITION TO REOPEN THE PROCEEDING FOR THE PURPOSE OF TAKING FURTHER
EVIDENCE, TO REMAND THE PROCEEDING TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE
AND TO STAY THE DUE DATE FOR FILING EXCEPTIONS (“Petition”). Copies of this letter
and the Petition are being served on the Administrative Law Judge and all parties of record.

Respectfully submitted,

Elisa P. Holland
Trial Attorney
Bureau of Enforcement

cc: Clay G. Guthridge, Acting Chief Administrative Law Judge
Owen Anderson and Anderson International Transport
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ANDERSON INTERNATIONAL TRANSPORT AND OWEN ANDERSON ~POSSIBLE
VIOLATIONS OF SECTIONS 8(A) AND 19 OF THE SHIPPING ACT OF 1984

PETITION TO REOPEN THE PROCEEDING FOR THE PURPOSE OF TAKING
FURTHER EVIDENCE, TO REMAND THE PROCEEDING TO THE
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE AND TO STAY THE DUE DATE FOR FILING
EXCEPTIONS
On August 28, 2009, the Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) issued an initial decision in

this case.! Pursuant to 46 C.F.R. § 502.230, the Bureau of Enforcement (“BOE”) petitions the
Federal Maritime Commisston (“Commission”) to reopen this proceeding in order to admit new
evidence concerning Respondents Anderson International Transport and Owen Anderson’s
(“Respondents™) ability to pay a civil penalty for violations of the Shipping Act of 1984
(“Shipping Act™) and to remand the proceeding to the ALJ for further determination on the
imposition of a civil penalty.” That evidence, including additional findings of fact and argument
thereon, is contained in the attached document entitled “ADDITIONAL PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT, BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF THE BUREAU OF ENFORCEMENT”.
The evidence consists of information filed between October 2008 and April 2009 in the
pleadings of Respondent Owen Anderson’s bankruptcy proceeding in the United States

Bankruptcy Court, Southern District of Texas. Additionally, BOE petitions the Commission for

a stay of the due date for filing exceptions in this proceeding until twenty days after a ruling is

1. That decision is not yet administratively final. Exceptions are due on Qctober 21, 2009, pursuant to the
Commission’s September 9, 2009 order. BOE intends to file exceptions to the initial decision.

2. The Commission could also consider the evidence on a de novo basis as part of its review of filed exceptions. 46
C.F.R. § 502,227, 46 C.F.R. § 502.230.



issued on this petition or, if remanded to the ALJ, a stay of the due date for filing exceptions in

this proceeding until twenty days after the ALJ issues a decision. Pursuant to 46 C.F.R.

§ 505.226, BOE also requests the Commission take official notice of the information contained

in the pleadings filed in Respondent Owen Anderson’s bankruptcy proceeding.
PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Commission issued the Order of Investigation and Hearing in this proceeding on
March 22, 2007. On September 6, 2007, the ALJ issued a Discovery Schedule and Procedural
Order setting forth deadlines for discovery and submission of written materials and/or
commencement of presentation of evidence. As required by the ALJ, BOE filed its Rule 95
statement on November 30, 2007. Neither Respondent filed a Rule 95 statement.> On February
15, 2008, BOE filed its Proposed Findings of Fact and Appendix. Respondents failed to file
their Response to BOE’s Proposed Findings of Fact and Appendix as required by the ALI’s
December 21, 2007 Memorandum, nor did they file their own Proposed Findings of Fact or
Appendix. On April 4, 2008, BOE filed an Amended Findings of Fact and Motion for an Order
to Show Cause against Respondents,

On November 4, 2008, the ALJ ordered BOE to file revised proposed findings of fact by
November 21, 2008. (Memorandum and QOrder Requiring Bureau of Enforcement to Revise and
Refile Bureau of Enforcement’s Proposed Findings of Fact and Bureau of Enforcement’s
Amended Findings of Fact). On November 4, 2008, the ALJ also issued an order on BOE’s
motion for an order to show cause. The ALJ’s order required Respondents to explain, by
December 12, 2008, why they had not filed their Rule 95 statements as required by orders dated
September 6, 2007, and December 21, 2007, and to file their response to BOE’s Revised

Proposed Findings of Fact. (Memorandum and Order for Respondents Anderson Intemnational

3. Anderson International Transport was operated as a sole proprietorship by Owen Anderson.
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Transport and Owen Anderson to Show Cause). Respondents have not complied with the ALY's
Order to Show Cause. On November 21, 2008, BOE filed its Revised Proposed Findings of
Fact, which superseded the original Proposed Findings of Fact filed by BOE on February 15,
2008. On August 28, 2009, the ALJ issued an initial decision, finding that Respondents operated
as an unlicensed, unbonded, ocean freight forwarder in violation of the Shipping Act, rather than
as an unlicensed, unbonded, untariffed non-vessel-operating common carrier but did not impose
a civil penalty citing, as pertinent here, the lack of evidence in the record regarding Respondents’

ability to pay. Docket No. 07-02, Owen Anderson and Anderson International Transport-Possible

Violations of Sections 8(a) and 19 of the Shipping Act of 1984.

While preparing its exceptions, BOE learned that in October 2008, Respondent Owen
Anderson filed a Chapter 7 bankruptcy petition. The Chapter 7 case was subsequently converted
to a Chapter 13 bankruptcy proceeding in December 2008 and was dismissed in April 2009. The
pleadings filed during the pendency of Owen Anderson’s bankruptcy petition, including a
statement of financial affairs, schedules of assets and liabilities and a Chapter 13 statement of
current monthly and disposable income dated April 2, 2009, as well as pleadings filed by
claimants, provide new inform:lition regarding Respondents’ ability to pay a civil penalty. The
new information will permit consideration of the statutory factors governing imposition of a civil
penalty on the basis of a more complete record. The Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure give the Commission the authority to reopen this proceeding to take official notice of
the bankruptcy pleadings.

DISCUSSION
REOPENING OF THE PROCEEDING
BOE petitions the Commission o reopen this proceeding in order to admit new evidence

concerning Respondents’ ability to pay a civil penalty for violations of the Shipping Act. 46



C.F.R. § 502.230 governs the reopening of a proceeding by the Commission. The rule states:

Where a decision has been issued by the presiding officer or where a decision by
the presiding officer has been omitted, but before issuance of a Commission

decision, the Commission may, after petition and reply in conformity with
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section, or upon its own motion, reopen a
proceeding for the purpose of taking additional evidence.* 46 C.F.R. § 502.230(b).

Agencies have broad discretion in deciding whether to reopen a proceeding and their decisions

are reviewed under an abuse of discretion standard, Interstate Commerce Commission v. Jersey

City et al., 322 U.S. 503 (1944); Interstate Commerce Commission v. Bhd. of Locomotive

Engineers, 482 U.S. 270 (1987). The Commission’s preference for a complete record was

discussed in the case of Hudson Shipping (Hong Kong) Ltd. d/b/a Hudson Express Linegs-

Possible violations of Section 10(a)(1) of the Shipping Act of 1984, 29 SRR 1376 (ALJ 2002),

where the ALJ reopened the record and vacated discovery sanctions prior to issuance of an initial
decision. The ALJ explained the rationale favoring reopening to permit the development of a
complete record:

... it is Commission policy that the evidentiary record be fully developed fully
[sic] before an initial decision is rendered. Maersk Line Agency for the Benefit of
Mitsui and Co., 22 FMC 224 [19 SRR 1014] (1979)....[1]t is not just the policy,
but the responsibility of the Commission and, by delegation of authority, the
presiding judge, to inquire into and consider all relevant facts, Michigan
Consolidated Gas Co. v. Federal Power Commission, 283 F2d 204, 226, cert.
denied, 364 US 913 (1960). The Commission’s role is not one of ‘an umpire
blindly calling balls and strikes for adversaries appearing before it.” Scenic
Hudson Preservation Conference v. Federal Power Commission, 354 F2d 608,
620 (2d Cir 1965). The Commission would not be fulfilling its responsibility if it
were to decide the issues upon a [sic] incomplete record. Indeed, of even greater
importance than the concept of fairness between the parties, as they maneuver to
develop a record which fits neatly within their positions, is the need to ensure that
justice is served and all relevant facts are investigated and considered by the
Commission. Isbrandtsen Co. v. United States, 96 FSupp 883, 892 (SD NY 1951);

4. BOE notes that the rule in its current version at 46 C.F.R. § 502.230 was issued in 1967 and constituted a change
from the Commission’s original rule governing reopening of proceedings. The original version, codified at 46
CF.R. § 502.261, contained a requirement that, if the purpose of the petition for reopening was to take further
evidence, there be a showing that the evidence was not available at the time of the prior hearing. That requirement
was deleted in the current rule. See General Order 16, Amdt. 2, 33 FR 9402, June 27, 1968 (issuance of 46 C.FR. §
502.230); General Order 16, 30 FR 13604, 13616, October 26, 1965 (issuance of 46 CF.R. § 502.261). However, in
this situation, the evidence BOE wishes to have the Commission take notice of and include in the record was not
available at the time BOE filed its Revised Proposed Findings of Fact in November 2008.
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Landis, The Administrative Process 39 (1938). Id. at 1377.
The Commission may reopen a proceeding for the purpose of taking further evidence,
particularly if the evidence is a material fact that “might affect the outcome of the suit under the

governing law”. Green Master Int’l Freight Services Ltd. - Possible Violations of Sections

10(a)(1) and 10(b}(1) of the Shipping Act of 1984, 29 SRR 1303, 1318 (FMC 2003), citing

Gonzalez v. Torres, 915 F. Supp. 511, 515 (DPR 1996). The evidence BOE seeks to have

admitted is relevant and material since it addresses Respondents’ ability to pay, a factor that must
be considered in assessing a civil penalty under Section 13 of the Shipping Act. The evidence
BOE urges the Commission to take notice of was not available at the time BOE filed its Revised
Proposed Findings of Fact in November 2008. Reopening the record to allow for admission of
new evidence will foster a more complete record.

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF INFORMATION CONTAINED IN RESPONDENT OWEN
ANDERSON’S BANKRUPTCY PLEADINGS

Rule 226 of the Commission’s Rules provides that official notice may be taken of any
matter that rriight be judicially noticed by the court. 46 C.F.R. § 502.226. Rule 201 of the
Federal Rules of Evidence allows for judicial notice of adjudicative facts. Fed. R. Evid. 201. A
judicially noticed fact is one that is “capable of accurate and ready determination by resort to
sources whose accuracy cannot reasonably be questioned.” Fed. R. Evid. 201(b). Information
contained in bankruptcy pleadings have been held to be facts appropriate for judicial notice. In

Veg-Mix, Inc. v. U.S. Dep’t of Agriculture, 832 F.2d 601, 607 (DC Cir. 1987), an Agriculture

Department ALJ allowed as evidence information contained in the bankruptcy pleadings of Veg-
Mix, Inc. Agriculture Department procedural rules, similar to the Commission’s rules, stated
that official notice shall be taken of such matters as are judicially noticed by the courts of the
United States. The D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals found the ALJ was authorized to take official

notice of the company’s bankruptcy petition and the information contained therein when



determining sanctions, finding courts may take judicial notice of court records, such as those in

bankruptcy proceedings. See also, Freshman v. Atkins, 269 U.S. 121, 123-24, (1925); In re

Aughenbaugh, 125 F.2d 887, 890 (3d Cir. 1942); In re Eagson Corp., 37 B.R. 471, 479-80
(Bankr. E.D. Pa. 1984).

BOE petitions the Commission to take official notice of the information contained in the
bankrupicy pleadings filed in Bankruptcy Petition # 08-36657 and contained in the attached
document entitled “ADDITIONAL PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT, BRIEF AND
APPENDIX OF THE BUREAU OF ENFORCEMENT” and to admit them into the record.” The
pleadings include a statement of financial affairs, schedules of assets and liabilities and a Chapter
13 statement of current monthly and disposable income, all filed by Owen Anderson under
penalty of perjury, as well as pleadings filed by claimants. It is appropriate for the Commission
to take official notice of the evidence contained in Respondent Owen Anderson’s bankruptcy
pleadings. The Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (“Rules™), following the
Administrative Procedure Act, allow for the admission of ““all evidence which is relevant,
reliable and probative and not unduly repetitious or cumulative™. 46 C.F.R. § 502.156. See 5
U.S.C. § 556(d), allowing admission of hearsay evidence as long as it is not irrelevant,

immaterial or unduly repetitious.® The pleadings filed in Respondent Owen Anderson’s

5. This information was obtained from the Public Access to Court Electronic Records (“PACER”) service, which
provides on-line access to U.S. Appellate, District, and Bankruptcy court records and documents nationwide.

Copies of pleadings filed in the procesding are available by accessing www.pacer.gov, clicking on the link for the
U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas (https:/'ect.txsb.uscourts. pov), and inputting Bankruptcy
Petition # 08-36657.

6. The APA evidentiary standard is a statutory adaptation of the views of the Supreme Court which has long held
that administrative agencies are not bound by the formal rules of evidence, and that hearsay is admissible in agency
proceedings. See, ICC v. Louisville & Nashville R. Co., 227 U.S. 88 (1913); Spiller v. Atchison, T. & S.F.R. Co.,
253 1J.S. 117 (1920); Opp Cotton Mills v, Administrator, 312 U.S. 126 (1941); ETC v. Cement Institute, 333 U.S.
683 (1948); Richardson v, Perales, 402 U.S. 389 (1971). The Commission addressed this question most recently in
EurcUSA Shipping, Inc., Tober Group, Inc., and Container Innovations, Inc. — Possible Violations of Section 10 of
the Shipping Act of 1984 and the Commission’s Regulations at 46 CFR § 515.27, 31 SRR 540 (2009). To the extent
that the Commission’s Rules and the APA diverge from the Federal Rules of Evidence, they are not controlling and
the Commission is not bound by their requirements. Documents not meeting the technical requirements of the
Federal Rules of Evidence, including hearsay evidence, are admissible in a Commission proceeding. Gallagher v.
National Transportation Safety Board, 953 F.2d 1214, 1218 (10" Cir.1992) (agencies are not bound by strict rules of
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bankruptcy proceeding should not be excluded on the grounds of hearsay. Evidence obtained
from the PACER service concerning Respondents’ assets, liabilities, and monthly income is
relevant, reliable and probative to the question of whether Respondents have the ability to pay a
civil penalty. The Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure give the Commission the
authority to take official notice of the information contained in the bankruptcy pleadings.
REMAND OF THE PROCEEDING TO THE ALJ

BOE also petitions for a remand of the proceeding to the ALJ for further determination
on the imposition of a civil penalty. BOE has requested the Commission take official notice of
and admit into the record evidence which bears directly on the question of whether Respondents
have the ability to pay a civil penalty. In his initial decision, the ALJ did not impose a civil
penalty citing, as relevant here, the lack of evidence in the record regarding Respondents’ ability
to pay. It is appropriate to remand the proceeding to the ALJ for consideration of the new
evidence and further determination on the imposition of a civil penalty.

STAY OF THE DUE DATE FOR FILING EXCEPTIONS

BOE also petitions for a stay of the due date for filing exceptions until twenty days after a
ruling is issued on this petition, or if the proceeding is remanded to the ALJ, until twenty days
after the ALJ issues a decision. The Commission’s decision on BOE’s petition may affect
BOE’s exceptions to the ALY’s decision not to impose a civil penalty; therefore it is appropriate
to stay the deadline for the filing of exceptions until twenty days after the Commission’s ruling.
Similarly, the ALJ’s determination on remand may affect BOE’s exceptions and it is appropriate

to stay the deadline for the filing of exceptions until twenty days after the ALJ’s decision.

evidence governing jury trials, but rather by the APA); Sec also, Pacific Champion Express Co., Ltd. — Possible
Violations, 28 S.R.R. 1185, 1197 (1999)(considering hearsay on question of holding out). An administrative
decision may even be supported by uncorroborated and untested testimony.

7



RELIEF REQUESTED

BOE petitions the Commission to reopen this proceeding in order to admit evidence
obtained from the bankruptcy pleadings of Respondent Owen Anderson. This information is
relevant to a determination of Respondents’ ability to pay a civil penalty. Accordingly, BOE
requests that the Commission take official notice of the bankruptcy proceeding and the pleadings
filed therein and admit the evidence into the record. BOE further petitions the Commission to
remand the proceeding to the ALJ for consideration of the new evidence and further
determination on the imposition of a civil penalty and petitions for a stay of the due date for
filing exceptions until twenty days after a ruling on BOE’s petition by the Commission, or in the
event the proceeding is remanded, for a stay of the due date until twenty days after a decision by

the ALJ.

yaw s

George A. Qiadrito, Deputy Director
Elisg P. Hollgnd, Trial Attorey
Bureau of Enforcement

Federal Maritime Commission

October 2 , 2009




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 2 h day of October, 2009, a copy of the foregoing PETITION
TO REQOPEN THE PROCEEDING FOR THE PURPOSE OF TAKING FURTHER
EVIDENCE, TO REMAND THE PROCEEDING TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW
JUDGE AND TO STAY THE DUE DATE FOR FILING EXCEPTIONS has been served
upon all the parties of record by first class mail.

Uuz«, PF/O’@@AAA g/

Elisa P. Holland

Owen Anderson

Anderson International Transport
3015 Richland Spring Lane
Sugarland, TX 77479
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CASES AND AUTHORITIES (ADDENDUM)

CASES

Ever Freight Int’] Ltd. et al., 28 SRR 329, 335 (1998, ALJ)
Merritt v. United States, 960 F.2d 15, 17 (1992)

Portman Square 1.td., 28 SRR 80, 86 (1998, ALJ)

Refrigerated Container Carriers Pty. Limited — Possible Violations

of Section _10(a)(1).of the Shipping Act of 1984, 28 SRR 799, 805
(Footnote 5) (1999, ALT)

STATUTES
46 U.S.C. §41109

REGULATIONS |
46 C.F.R. § 502.603(b)
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BOE hereby submits the following additional proposed findings of fact, brief and appendix.

1.

ADDITIONAL PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
On October 17, 2008, Owen Anderson filed a Chapter 7 voluntary petition in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court, Southern District of Texas. It was assigned Bankruptcy Petition #
08-36657. (BOE App. 28, P. BOE001001; BOE App. 29).
On October 17, 2008, Owen Anderson also filed Schedules B, E, F, I and J to his
Chapter 7 voluntary petition. (BOE App. 32). Schedule B listed personal property in
the amount of $16,000.00. (BOE App. 32, P. BOE001031-BOE001033). Schedule E
listed unsecured priority claims in the amount of $698,000.00, including a $660,000
claim by tfle Federal Maritime Commission for this proceeding and a claim by the
Attorney of Texas of $38,000.00. (BOE App. 32, P. BOE001035). Schedule F listed
unsecured non-priority claims in the amount of $270,870.50. (BOE App. 32, P.
BOE001035-BOE001044). Schedule I listed Owen Anderson’s current monthly
income as $2808.00 and his spouse’s current monthly income as $3269.00. (BOE
App. 32, P. BOE001045). Schedule J listed current monthly expenditures of Owen
Anderson and his spouse as $6077.00 with a monthly net income of $778.00. (BOE
App. 32, BOE001046).
On November 5, 2008, Owen Anderson filed a Chapter 7 Statement of Current
Monthly Income and Means-Test Calculation. (BOE App. 30). Owen Anderson
listed gross monthly income of $3128.00. (BOE App. 30, P. BOE001012). Owen
Anderson listed business income of $589.00 (BOE App. 30, P. BOE001013). Owen

Anderson listed total current monthly income (including his spouse’s income} of



$8291.00. for an annualized current monthly income of $99,492.00. (BOE App. 30, P.
BOE001013).

. On November 5, 2008, Owen Anderson filed a Statement of Financial Affairs. (BOE
App. 31). In that statement, he listed income from employment or operation of
business as $75,072.00 and income other than from employment or operation of a
business of $13,610.00. (BOE App. 31, P. BOE001020-BOE001021). Owen
Anderson also listed in the repossessions, foreclosures and returns section of his
statement that property worth $125,000.00 was repossessed or subject to a foreclosure

sale on May 5, 2008. (BOE App. 31, P. BOE(001022).

. On November 13, 2008, the United States Trustee filed a motion to dismiss Owen

Anderson’s Chapter 7 case because Owen Anderson received a discharge in Case No.
02-43851-H3-7 which was filed on November 21, 2002. On November 19, 2008,
Owen Anderson filed an answer to the motion requesting that his Chapter 7 petition
be converted .to Chapter 13 and he be given time to find an attorney. Owen
Anderson’s request was granted on December 30, 2008. (BOE App. 33).

. On February 5, 2009, the United States Trustee filed a motion to dismiss Owen
Anderson’s Chapter 13 petition for failure to make payments, provide information
and file a Chapter 13 plan, (BOE App. 36). A hearing was scheduled for March 26,
2009. (BOE App. 28, P. BOE001005}.

. On February 6, 2009, Monique Wolfe filed a notice of removal in Owen Anderson’s
bankruptcy action, citing her suit in the 269" Judicial District Court of Harris County,
Texas. (BOE App. 37( PACER file missing page 5 and 6 of plaintiff’s original
petition)). Monique Wolfe’s suit in Texas state court against Owen Anderson,

Anderson International Transport and AIT International alleged they failed to



10.

properly complete a shipment of household goods from Texas to Aruba, for which
Monique Wolfe paid $30,000.00. Monique Wolfe has already obtained a default
judgment against Anderson International Transport and AIT International in the
Texas state court suit. (BOE App. 37).

On February 11, 2009, Owen Anderson, represented by Floyd F. James, Sr. &
Associates, filed a Chapter 13 Petition and accompanying schedules. (BOE App. 34).
Owen Anderson showed estimated assets of $100,00.01 to $500,000.00 and liabilities
of the same amount. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001052). In Schedule A Real Property,
Owen Anderson listed a home located at 11835 S. Ridgewood Circle valued at
$124,396.00. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001057). Owen Anderson did not list any
personal property under Schedule B nor did he claim any property as exempt under
Schedule C. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001061-BOE001062).

In Schedule E, Creditors holding Unsecured Priority Claims, Owen Anderson listed
child support obligations in the amount of $36,238.89. (BOE App. 34, P.
BOE001065). In Schedule F, Creditors Holding Unsecured Nonpriority Claims,
Owen Anderson listed claims totaling $102,133.22, including a claim by
Southwestern Bell Yellow Pages for $53,629.95. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001066-
BOEQ)01068).

In Schedule I, Current Income of Individual Debtor(s), Owen Anderson listed average
monthly income of $2,698.00. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001071). In Schedule J,
Current Expenditures of Individual Debtor(s), Owen Anderson listed average monthly
expenses of $2,420.00 leaving a monthly net income of $278.00. (BOE App. 34, P.

BOE001072).




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

In the Summary of Schedules, Owen Anderson listed assets of $124,396.00 and
liabilities of $138,372.11. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001073).

On February 11, 2009, Owen Anderson filed a Statement of Financial Affairs. (BOE
App. 34, P. BOE001076-BOE001080). Owen Anderson listed negative income of
$8,422.00 for 2005 and income of $58,782.00 for 2006. Owen Anderson also listed a
lawsuit against himself, Anderson International Transport and AIT International by
Monique Wolfe. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE0001076). Owen Anderson also listed a
repossession or foreclosure of property worth $124,000.00 in August 2008. (This
appears to be the property referenced in Proposed Additional Finding of Fact Number
8). (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001077).

On February 11, 2009, Owen Anderson filed a Chapter 13 Statement of Current
Monthly Income and Calculation of Commitment Period and Disposable Income.
(BOE App. 34, P. BOE001087-BOE(Q01093). Owen Anderson listed monthly income
of $3,564.00 and annualized income of $42,768.00. (BOE App. 34, P. BOE001087-
BOE001088).

On March 26, 2009, the Bankruptcy Court gave Owen Anderson ten days to file an
ACH order, pay current plan payments, file an amended plan, file an amended 22¢,
file tax returns, make an appointment with the trustee’s accountant, provide domestic
support obligation documentation and file an amended schedule L. (BOE App. 28, P.
BOEO001006).

On April 2, 2009, Owen Anderson filed a revised Chapter 13 Statement of Current
Monthly Income and Calculation of Commitment Period and Disposable Income.
(BOE App. 35). Owen Anderson listed monthly income of $2,914.36. (BOE App. 35,

P, BOE001096-BOE001097).




16. On April 15, 2009, an order was issued by the Bankruptcy Court dismissing Owen
Anderson’s Chapter 13 petition for failure to comply with its March 26, 2009

requirements. (BOE App. 28, P. BOE001007).

ARGUMENT

ABILITY TO PAY AND IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY
Section 13(c) of the Shipping Act provides that, in assessing civil penalties, the Commission
take into account the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of a violation, as well as the
degree of culpability, history of prior offenses, ability to pay, and such other matters as justice
may require, 46 U.S.C. § 41109. Ability to pay is only one factor in determining the appropriate

amount of a civil penalty. See Portman Square Ltd., 28 SRR 80, 86 (1998, ALJ); Ever Freight

Int’l Ltd. et al., 28 SRR 329, 335 (1998, ALJ); Refrigerated Container Carriers Pty. Limited -

Possible Violations of Section 10(a)(1) of the Shipping Act of 1984, 28 SRR 799, 805 (Footnote

5) (1999, ALJ). In taking the Section 13 factors into account, the Commission must make
specific findings with regard to each factor, However, the Commission may use its discretion to

determine how much weight to place on each factor. Merritt v. United States, 960 F.2d 15, 17

(1992).

The filings made by Owen Anderson during his bankruptcy proceeding are consistent, albeit
not identical, with regard to his income or debts. In various filings, Owen Anderson indicated
his monthly income was $2698.00, $2808.00, $2914.00, $3564.00 or $3717.00. (Additional
Proposed Finding of Fact (“APFF”} 2, 3, 10, 13, 15). Taking an average, it is reasonable to
conclude that Owen Anderson’s annualized income is between $37,000.00 and $44,000.00.
Excluding any claim by the Commission and including the suit filed by Monique Wolfe, the

bankruptcy filings show that Owen Anderson has claims and debts against him of approximately



$150,000.00 to $270,000.00, some of which are medical and legal bills. (APFF 2, 6, 8).
Monique Wolfe has obtained a default judgment against Anderson International Transport.
(APFF 6). It also appears that Owen Anderson’s main asset, property at 11835 S. Ridgewood
Circle, Houston, Texas, is at best, the subject of a foreclosure proceeding and may have already
been the subject of a foreclosure sale. (APFF 4, 7, 12). It is reasonable to conclude that
Respondents have a limited ability to pay a civil penalty.

However, ability to pay is only one factor in determining the amount of a civil penalty. BOE
believes the record supports imposition of the maximum civil penalty of $30,000.00 for each
violation. As previously recommended in BOE’s Revised Proposed Findings of Fact, assessment
of a substantial civil penalty, up to and including the maximum, against Respondents is
appropriate. Owen Anderson, through Anderson International Transport, originated twenty-
three' ocean export shipments during the period January 5, 2005 through May, 2007, with three
of those shipments occurring after the issuance of an Order of Investigation and Hearing in this
case. Many of his customers suffered delivery delays and monetary losses. With regard to his
history of prior offenses, Mr. Anderson was counseled personally by representatives of the
Commission regarding the requirements of the 1984 Act in 1997 and again in 2006. Mr.
Anderson has indicated on several occasions that he is aware of the requirements of the Shipping
Act, yet continues to knowingly and willfully provide ocean transbortation services mn violation
of the Shipping Act. Most recently, Mr. Anderson has participated in ocean transportation
activities resulting in substantial harm to the shipping public and other shipping companies.
Regardless of Respondents’ ability or inability to pay, a substantial civil penalty will send a
strong message to other common carriers and serve as a deterrent to similar conduct. The

policies for deterrence and future compliance with the Commission’s regulations are substantial

1. In his initial decision, the ALJ held that a shipment which BOE characterized as one shipment was two sepatate
shipments for the same proprietary shipper and found that Respondents violated the Shipping Act on twenty-three
vs. twenty-two occasions.



factors to be considered with the other factors in assessing the amount of a civil penalty. 46
C.E.R. § 502.603(b). In the circumstances of this case, the deterrent effect on others who might

be inclined to violate the law clearly justifies assessment of a significant civil penalty

m

Geor \Qladrino, Deputy Director
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